

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND TWENTY-SECOND LEGISLATURE

FIRST REGULAR SESSION
December 1, 2004 to March 30, 2005

FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
April 4, 2005 to June 18, 2005

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST REGULAR SESSION
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
JUNE 29, 2005

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
SEPTEMBER 17, 2005

PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,
TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.

Penmor Lithographers
Lewiston, Maine
2005

CHAPTER 59

H.P. 363 - L.D. 488

An Act To Clarify City Election Procedures

Emergency preamble. Whereas, acts of the Legislature do not become effective until 90 days after adjournment unless enacted as emergencies; and

Whereas, current law regarding the announcement of elections is unclear as to the application of that law to city referenda when the municipal charter requirements are different; and

Whereas, it is important to clarify the method for calling city referenda; and

Whereas, in the judgment of the Legislature, these facts create an emergency within the meaning of the Constitution of Maine and require the following legislation as immediately necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety; now, therefore,

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 30-A MRSA §2551, as enacted by PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 and Pt. C, §106 and amended by PL 1989, c. 6; c. 9, §2; and c. 104, Pt. C, §§8 and 10, is repealed and the following enacted in its place:

§2551. Warrant or notice for city election

Except as otherwise required by municipal charter, each city election must be called by a warrant or by a notice of election posted in compliance with Title 21-A, section 621-A. The warrant must meet the requirements listed in Title 21-A, section 622-A.

Sec. 2. Retroactivity. This Act applies retroactively to all city elections held on or after January 1, 2003.

Emergency clause. In view of the emergency cited in the preamble, this Act takes effect when approved.

Effective April 21, 2005.

CHAPTER 60

H.P. 398 - L.D. 522

An Act To Provide the Same Exemption from Jury Duty to Veterinarians as Granted to Medical Doctors

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 14 MRSA §1211, as amended by PL 1985, c. 608, is further amended to read:

§1211. Disqualifications and exemptions from jury service

A prospective juror is disqualified to serve on a jury if ~~he~~ that prospective juror is not a citizen of the United States, 18 years ~~old~~ of age and a resident of the county, or is unable to read, speak and understand the English language. The following persons are exempt from serving as jurors: The Governor, judges, physicians and dentists providing active patient care; veterinarians with or in an active veterinary medicine practice, sheriffs, attorneys-at-law and all persons exempt under Title 37-B, section 185.

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 61

H.P. 293 - L.D. 391

An Act To Amend the Maine Motor Vehicle Franchise Board Laws

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 5 MRSA §9051, sub-§1, as amended by PL 1991, c. 885, Pt. D, §2, is further amended to read:

1. Adjudicatory proceeding. In any adjudicatory proceedings, except those proceedings involving correctional facilities, the Workers' Compensation Board, the Maine Motor Vehicle Franchise Board or the State Parole Board, the procedures of this subchapter ~~shall~~ apply.

Sec. 2. 10 MRSA §1187, sub-§1, as enacted by PL 2003, c. 356, §12, is amended to read:

1. Membership. The board consists of 7 regular members and 4 alternate members:

A. ~~Six~~ Ten members appointed by the Governor:

(1) Three regular members and 2 alternate members who are or have been franchised new motor vehicle dealers in the State of Maine;

(2) A regular member and an alternate member who ~~is~~ are or ~~has~~ have been ~~an~~ employee employees or representative representatives of a ~~franchisor~~ franchisors; and